
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

3.00 pm TUESDAY, 17TH DECEMBER, 2019 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

 
A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.30 pm.   

This meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 

member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 
725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 

found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

AGENDA 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Regional Partnership Business   

 To consider the attached report 
 

3 - 10 

4. Mid-Year Update on Young Carers   

 To consider the attached report 
 

11 - 18 

5. Forward Work Programme 2019/20   

 To consider the attached report 
 

19 - 32 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   
 

  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and 

I Thomas 
 
Co-optees: E Davies 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Regional Partnership Business  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Scrutiny members on some of the work being 

completed with partners. The Social Services and Well-Being Act (Wales) 2014 
came into effect in April 2016 and made clear the expectation that there would be 
more regional and partnership working with the Local health board and neighbouring 
Local Authorities.  

 
1.2 As a result of the joint working a Population Needs Assessment was undertaken and 

this has assisted in identifying priorities for Cwm Taf Morgannwg and the 
development of a Regional/Area Plan. It is important that we look at the long term 
needs of the population and this fits with the ethos of the Well-Being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 
1.3 The report outlines where we are now with the various strategies that have been 

agreed regionally and outlines some of the priorities and the work being completed 
on a regional basis. 

 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee Members note and debate the contents of the report. 
 
 
 
 

Date Written 29th November 2019 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 17th December 2019 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 (“the Act”) came into effect on 

6th April 2016. The Act required that Local Authorities and their Local Health Board 
establish a Regional Partnership Board to manage and develop services to secure 
strategic planning and partnership working between Local Authorities and Local 
Health Boards and to ensure effective services, care and support are in place to best 
meet the needs of their population.  

 
3.2 The Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board (''the Board'') was  

established and objectives were set. Initially priorities were set for the Board and 
progress on the integration of services for the following:  

 
 Older people with complex needs and long term conditions, including 

dementia;  
 People with learning disabilities; 
 Carers, including young carers; 
 Integrated Family Support Services; and 
 Children with complex needs due to disability or illness. 

 
3.3 The focus initially for the partnership board was on the preparatory work to establish 

the strategic frameworks to guide service development over the next 5-10 years and 
the completion of the Population Assessment in 2018 was a significant milestone for 
the Board in that regard. 

 
3.4 In response to the Population Assessment, a Joint Regional/Area Plan was 

produced by 1st April 2018 by the two Local Authorities (RCT and MT) and the UHB 
under the direction of the Board.  

  
3.5 The introduction of the Integrated Care Fund and the Delivering Transformation 

Grant has allowed Cwm Taf to be innovative and look at new models and the 
development of new services. 

 
3.6 On 1st April 2019 following consultation the boundaries for the health board changed 

and Bridgend joined the partnership board. There was a period leading up to this 
where Bridgend Social Services officers attended the board meetings and 
operational meetings n prepare for the new board in 2019.  There have been varying 
workshop events over the past year to assist the transition. Both Population Needs 
Assessments have been discussed and compared, and the similarities and priorities 
have been highlighted.  

 
3.7 There have also been discussions about the Governance arrangements and the 

membership of the board moving forward. Further work is required on this over 
coming months.  

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 It is important that we listened to the public view and what services would be 

required in future and the population needs assessment allowed us to consider the 
long term plans for Cwm Taf Morgannwg.   

 

Page 4



4.2 The Board identified a number of areas of priority across Cwm Taf and these are 
outlined below: 
 
Older People 

 
4.3   The Region developed a Joint Commissioning Statement of Intent for Older People’s 

Services with a common vision for integrated health and social care services for 
older people in Cwm Taf:  

 
'Supporting people to live independent, healthy and fulfilled lives' 

 
 In implementing the Statement of Intent, the following priorities were included in the 

Regional Plan:  
 

OP1 We will nurture supportive communities and family networks through easily 
accessible universal services, general and targeted health and wellbeing initiatives  
OP2 We will offer integrate, time limited and goal oriented services to help people 
whose needs cannot be purely met by community and preventative support  
OP3 We will ensure people have access to holistic assessment that takes into 
account people’s needs and wishes, promoting choice and control to improve quality 
of life 
OP4 We will ensure that older people whose needs require a specialist or substitute 
service are able to access those services at the right time in the right place and that 
they offer an improved quality of life. 
 
 

4.4 Areas of work undertaken:  
 

 Market Position Statement (stronger partnership working between commissioners 
and providers.) 

 Developed a regional care home contract and service specification.  

 The creation of the Stay Well @ Home Service. 

 Development of the Virtual Ward scheme. 
 
 

Children and Young People  
 
4.5 During 2017/18, a draft Cwm Taf Regional Statement of Intent for Supporting 

Children, Young People and Families was produced jointly by partners in Cwm Taf in 
response to the population analysis, and building on consultation with the public and 
professionals in 2016. It was intended to remain relevant until 2022 and was 
proposed as the shared vision, principles and objectives to direct the work of all 
partners.  

 
4.6 The Statement of Intent was focused on the following shared vision, that: 
 

 Children, young people and families in Cwm Taf will live safe, healthy and fulfilled 
lives and achieve their full potential. 

 Families and communities will be more resilient and independent.  

 Our focus on communities will give children, young people and families the best 
possible environment to thrive. 

Page 5



 The balance of resource will shift from safeguarding, substitute and complex care 
to early and targeted help. 

  
 
4.7  The final Statement was approved by partners in July 2018. The Regional Plan 

includes the priorities below: 
 

CYP1 We will have the right universal services at the right time to promote wellbeing, 
achievement and independence 
CYP2 We will focus on early help for those with emerging difficulties 
CYP3 We will target intensive support for those who are really struggling  

 
Carers  

 
4.8 The Partnership’s Carers Strategy 2016-19 has the following vision: 
 

Carers of all ages in Cwm Taf will be recognised and valued as being fundamental to 
supportive and resilient families and communities. They will not have to care alone 
and will be able to access information, advice and support to help meet their needs, 
empowering them to lead healthy and fulfilled lives, balancing their caring role and 
their life outside caring. 
 

 
4.9 The Regional Plan contains the following actions: 
 

 C1 Identifying carers of all ages and recognising their contributions  

 C2 Providing up to date, relevant and timely information, advice and assistance 
to Carers of all ages.  

 C3 Providing support, services and training to meet the needs of Carers of all 
ages 

 C4 Giving Carers of all ages a voice with more choice and control over their 
lives  

 C5 Working together to make the most of our resources for the benefit of carers 
of all ages 

 
 
4.10 In September 2017, the RPB commissioned the Welsh Institute of Health and Social 

Care to work with partners to review our current service model for carers and 
consider how we could provide more effective integrated services across the region. 
The Summary report of this work produced in January 2018 includes a blueprint of 
what a comprehensive “offer” for Cwm Taf carers could look like across five themes: 

 

 Access, information, advice and assistance  

 Support services  

 Employment support services, education and training  

 Respite and breaks  

 Making it happen  
 
 
4.11 A separate detailed Carers Annual Report was required by WG. The Cwm Taf 

Carers Annual Report for 2018/119 has been prepared and approved by partners.  Page 6



 
People with Learning Disabilities 
 
4.12 Following engagement and a range of activities to raise awareness and involve 

service user, carers, public and other stakeholders in the development of  a Joint 
Statement of Strategic Intent for Children, Young People, and Adults with Learning 
Disabilities (that includes autism and complex needs) and their families, the  
Partnership has approved the final version) 

 
4.13 The Statement of Intent describes a shared commitment to deliver a new model for 

health and social services, focused on the following key messages: 
 

 Maximise the use of universal services 

 Increase early intervention, prevention, information, advice and assistance 

 Build community support and develop people’s independence 

 Sustain people in their own homes 

 Enable people to live full lives and achieve their potential 

 Keep people safe 

 Make the best use of our resources 
 

Pooled Budgets  
 

4.14 In the Cwm Taf region, pooled budgets are in place for youth offending  
services, integrated equipment services and learning disability packages of care. 
These funds provide an enabler for increasing value and improving outcomes 
through integrated and seamless services for a range of patient and client groups. 

 
4.15  An overarching Pooled Fund for residential and nursing care has been established 

and is operating as set out in a Legal Agreement between partners, hosted by RCT 
CBC. It essentially encompasses all older persons’ independent residential and 
nursing placements in establishments located within the regional footprint. 

 
Welsh Community Care Information System (WCCIS) 

 
4.16 As part of a collaborative approach across Cwm Taf, we implemented the Welsh 

Community Care Information System (WCCIS). This was a major new national ICT 
system which will enable social services (adults and children) and a range of 
community health services (including mental health, therapy and nursing) to share 
relevant information across disciplines, organisations and geographical boundaries.  

 
4.17 By using the same system, health and social care staff can more effectively together  

plan, coordinate and deliver services and support for individuals, families and 
communities, with access to key data to support enhanced treatment and care.  

 
4.18 The implementation of WCCIS is a priority action in the Regional Plan. Merthyr Tydfil 

CBC went live with WCCIS in July 2017 and has subsequently been delivering 
against its WCCIS Development and Operational Plan which includes ongoing 
system improvements, processes, quality assurance and training. RCT went live in 
April 2018. 

 
 
 

Page 7



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 The Regional partnership Board is well established and the section above outlines 

some of the areas of partnership working across the region. As outlined above 
Bridgend formally joined the partnership board on 1st April 2019 and work has been 
ongoing around integration of services in some areas. 

 
5.2 We are developing a joint regional plan and looking at previous population needs 

assessments where there are many similarities in demands to the services.  
 
5.3 Regional working across Cwm Taf Morgannwg is more advanced in some areas with 

the development of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board, WCCIS regional 
team and the workforce development team.  

 
5.4 The statements of intent are still relevant but we are considering the future priorities 

of the board and the future governance arrangements. Bridgend officers attend the 
relevant group meetings to contribute and influence future plans. Officers from Cwm 
Taf have attended information sharing events hosted by  Bridgend colleagues in 
respect of some of the good work they are doing both in adults and children services, 
which has been very positive.   

 
5.5 Development in the areas above have continued across the region. The introduction 

of the ICF funding has allowed some innovative working across the region. This 
funding continues and we have seen more investment within children services this 
year which will have a positive impact on our young people. Within Merthyr Tydfil this 
has assisted us to develop the Early Help Hub and Supporting Family Change team. 
The latter was assisted by Merthyr Tydfil bringing the Integrated Family Support 
Team back in house and developing the service locally to provide intensive support 
to families at the earliest opportunity. This team is still in development as recruitment 
inly commenced in recent months. 

 
5.6 The regional carers’ strategy is ongoing. Locally we have recruited to the carers post 

to enable us to take the recommendations of this report forward.  
 
5.7 This year has seen the introduction of the transformation Fund investment from 

Welsh Government. This is an investment of £22.7 m into Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
regional partnership.  

 
5.8 There are two Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Partnership programmes, ‘Stay Well in 

Your Community’ (SWYC) and ‘Accelerating the Pace of Change of Integrated 
Services’ (APCIS).  

 
5.9 The programmes include Assistive technology, Stay Well @ Home (Phase 2), and 

Enhanced Community Cluster team in Your Community. It links to the Healthier 
Wales initiative which is the Welsh Government’s long-term plan to bring health and 
social care services together. The overall aim is to move from an acute service to a 
wellness service, and move care from hospitals into our communities. The aim is for 
people to be able to stay closer to home and for as long as possible. Both 
programme aim to build upon successful schemes to develop services around 
people within their communities; providing timely responses to health and social care 
needs and building well co-ordinated, resilient communities. 

 

Page 8



 

  
 
 
6.0       WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We want strong working relationships with our partners and working together will 

provide improved and sustainable services for the public. The plans we have drawn 
up need to be operational and resources provided to meet needs. 

 
6.2 We want to provide services in a timely manner, and provide information and advice 

and assistance when required. Many of the innovations this year have been 
focussed on Early Intervention and Prevention and providing services to children and 
adults in a timely manner.  

 
6.3 Improve outcomes for people across Merthyr Tydfil. We want them to live 

independent, healthy and fulfilled lives.  
 
6.4 We want to continue to engage with the public and improve communication. It is 

important that services we provide are evaluated and that views are sought. We 
need to ensure we are providing the right services at the right time, and if not then 
further develop these where required. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 We will review the Actions in the Plan annually to see if we are making progress and 

making it quickly enough.  
 
7.2 We will continue to work with partners across Cwm Taf Morgannwg to improve 

outcomes for children and adults in Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Page 9



7.3 We will continue to further develop services where appropriate as part of the regional 
partnership across children and adult services, for example Stay Well in the 
Community and the Multi Agency Permanence Support Services (MAPPS). 

 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR                 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No  

 

Page 10



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Mid-Year Update on Young Carers 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a mid-year update on the Carers Strategy in 

relation to Young Carers.   
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive this report and to raise questions and 

challenge leading to improvement.   
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Young carers are children and young people under 18 who provide regular and on-

going care and emotional support to a family member who is physically or mentally 
ill, disabled or misuses substances.  The provision for Merthyr Young Carers is 
located within Children’s Services Early Intervention and Prevention component of its 
service strategy.  

 
3.2 Local Authority Duties to Young Carers 

The Local Authority’s duties to young carers are set out in the part 3 Code of 
Practice issued under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

 
3.3 A local authority must assess whether the carer has needs for support (or is likely to 

do so in the future) and if they do, what those needs are or are likely to be.  A carer 
is defined in the Act as a person who provides or intends to provide care for an adult 
or a disabled child.  

  

Date Written 29th November 2019 

Report Author Taryn Hudd 

Service Area Children’s Services 

Committee Date 17th December 2019 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



3.4 The duty is triggered if it appears to the Local Authority that a carer may have needs 
for support; and we would always assume this to be the case with young carers. 

 
3.5 The assessment must include an assessment of the extent to which the carer is able 

and willing to provide the care and to continue to provide the care, the outcomes the 
carer wishes to achieve both in terms of themselves and, if a child is the carer, the 
outcomes the person(s) with parental responsibility for that child wish(es) to achieve 
for them and the extent to which support, preventative services, or the provision of 
information, advice or assistance could assist in achieving the identified outcomes.  
The local authority must involve the carer and where feasible the person for whom 
the carer provides or intends to provide care in the assessment.  

 
3.6 The assessment also must have regard to whether the young carer works or wishes 

to work and whether they are participating or wish to participate in education, training 
or leisure activities.  If the carer is a child, the assessment must have regard to his or 
her developmental needs and the extent to which it is appropriate for the child to 
provide the care.  This should lead to consideration by the local authority of whether 
a child carer is actually a child with care and support needs in his or her own right 
and who therefore should be assessed under section 21 of the Act.   

 
3.7 If the carer is a young adult carer aged between 16 and 25 the assessment must 

include an assessment of any current or future transitions the carer is likely to make 
into further or higher education, employment or training and have due regard to what 
the young adult carer wishes to participate in.  

 
3.8 There is no typical young carer.  The care they provide can be physical, emotional or 

social.  Young Carers are individuals who may not see themselves as Carers, but 
consider themselves above all a son, daughter, family member friend or neighbour.  
Caring often impacts on the whole family, not just one person. Young Carers’ 
circumstances vary enormously, as can the type and amount of support they give. 
Caring can be a gradual process as over time someone becomes more frail and 
needs more support or it can happen suddenly, for example if someone has an 
accident or a health problem like a stroke. Young Carers often have adult caring 
responsibilities while having the legal status of children. Whilst it is also rewarding, 
caring can be both physically tiring and emotionally stressful.  Young carers often 
feel isolated, unsupported and alone, having to face the challenges of education and 
growing up alongside their caring responsibilities. 

 
3.9 Regional Partnership Board 

The Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board have committed to a 
range of strategic intentions across the region in line with the Social Services and 
Well-being Act.  This has included the development of a Cwm Taf Carers Strategy 
and the establishment of a Cwm Taf Carers Partnership Group.   

 
3.10 The following principles have been used by the Cwm Taf Carers Partnership Group 

to inform its work: 
 

 We will promote and support effective communication across the partnership; 

 We will make sure that users of our services, particularly Carers, are able to 
influence the work of the partnership;  

Page 12



 We will focus on what matters to the people and communities of Cwm Taf; 

 We will promote and develop solutions towards preventing problems occurring or 
getting worse for people in Cwm Taf;  

 We will promote and support collaboration and integration;  

 We will make sure that we strike a balance between short term needs and longer 
term goals;    

 We will listen to, understand and respect individual organisational views and the 
views of other parties; 

 We will conduct business with transparency and openness and; 

 We will fully utilise the wide range of skills, knowledge and experience which are 
available to the Group. 

 
3.11 Services for Young Carers in Merthyr Tydfil 

The Young Carers Service within Merthyr Tydfil has been provided by Barnardos 
since 1997. The service operates an open referral system, accepting referrals from 
young carers themselves, their families and professionals. The service is currently 
facilitated by a full time project worker and a sessional worker. The service offers: 

 Young carers assessments and care planning 

 There are three after-school groups in community venues which provide a mix of 
leisure time and issue based topics. 

 One to one sessions are provided for young carers who need intensive support.  
This can include emotional support, support to access health service, confidence 
building or relationship issues. During 2018/2019 184 one to one sessions were 
conducted. 

 Since 2nd September 2019 Young Carers have had a presence within the Early 
Help Hub to support wider identification of preventative support needs within a 
carer’s family unit. 

 
3.12 Estyn Thematic Report - Young Carers 

Scrutiny Committee members  will be aware that during 2018/2019 Estyn published 
its thematic report on provision for young carers in secondary schools, further   
education colleges and pupil referral units across Wales and found: 

 Lack of reliable data to identify how many young carers there are in schools, 
PRUs and colleges  

 Many providers do not know which of their pupils and learners have a caring role 

 Provision for young carers at secondary schools, colleges and PRUs varies 
widely  

 Secondary schools, colleges and PRUs that are most effective in meeting the 
needs of young carers have robust systems to identify these learners, track their 
wellbeing needs regularly and adapt their provision carefully to meet the 
individual needs of each young carer. However, only a minority of the schools, 
colleges and PRUs surveyed use an information management system to track 
and report on the progress young carers make compared with their peers.   

 Secondary schools, colleges and PRUs that have a named lead member of staff 
for young carers generally provide a high level of care, support and guidance for 
this group of learners  
 

Page 13



 Young carers benefit considerably where local authorities have a clear strategic 
plan for carers and a named person to drive forward the strategy in educational 
settings.  

 Specialist agencies provide high quality resources and support to raise 
awareness and meet the needs of young carers. But many secondary schools, 
colleges and PRUs do not engage well enough with these agencies and have not 
accessed this valuable support.   

 
3.13 The following recommendations are made for schools: 
 

1. Ensure that they have sound procedures to identify which of their pupils/learners 
have a caring role   

2. Have a named member of staff with lead responsibility for young carers who acts 
as a point of contact for young carers and champions their needs   

3. Raise staff awareness of young carers’ needs   
4. Engage with specialist services to review and improve their provision to meet the 

needs of young carers   
5. Track and monitor the progress and outcomes for young carers as they currently 

do for other groups of vulnerable learners   
6. Evaluate their provision for young carers with reference to the checklist in 

Appendix 1 or available toolkits.   
  
3.14 There is one recommendation within the report for local authorities:  
  

1. The local authority should focus carer strategies on increasing the capacity of 
schools, colleges and PRUs to identify and meet the needs of young carers. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  

 
4.1 During 2018/2019 24 new young carers assessments were undertaken, all of which 

led to a support plan. A further 156 young carers support plans were reviewed within 
the set timescales. 

 
4.2 For the first time Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers in May 2018 had the opportunity to 

engage in a residential stay. This was delivered via PGL Travel Ltd which is the UK’s 
leading outdoor education provider, delivering inspirational learning through 
adventure. This was significant for those that attended as many young carers do not 
have the same opportunities as their peers to have a ‘holiday’.  They engaged in a 
number of activities including archery, raft racing and abseiling; all of which are 
designed to build young people’s resilience and confidence. Twenty seven young 
carers participated in the residential. 

 
4.3 Merthyr Tydfil’s Young Carers Choir was established in January 2019. During its first 

three months there were a number of highlights including having the opportunity to 
perform in the Barnardo’s Young Supporters Concert at St David’s Hall, Cardiff. The 
benefits of the choir are, providing young carers with opportunities that help build 
their self-esteem, confidence and the sense of belonging to a group. 

 

Page 14



4.4 The financial year of 2018/2019 saw a reduction in funding to the Young Carers 
Service from Families First. In 2019/2020 the provision is entirely core funded; this 
has meant an overall reduction in the young carers’ budget. 

  

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 During the first two quarters of 2019/2020 the service engaged with 96 young carers, 

across 80 family units. Twenty new young carers were provided with an assessment 
in their own right and were provided with a service. This is an increase in the number 
of new young carer assessments undertaken in the first two quarters of 2018/2019, 
with the overall figure for that year being 24. Within the first two quarters 86 carers 
have received review in their own right. 

 
5.2 Carer well-being is central to the measures of the Young Carers service, overall 

within the first two quarters of the year 70% of young carers who have attended the 
programme have reported an improvement in their wellbeing. 75% of families 
engaged with the service report an improvement in their families’ resilience. 

 
5.3 In 2018/2019 young carers were offered the opportunity to attend residential/ short 

break activities which young carers spoke highly of. Through working with the Cwm 
Taf Morgannwg Carers Partnership Group we had secured funding of £4,100 for this 
provision to take place during 2019/2020, to date one residential activity has been 
undertaken. The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Partnership Group have also 
supported the provision establishing cooking sessions. 

 
5.4 The Young Carer’s Choir continues to meet on a weekly basis.  Recent 

performances include the Welsh festival at Pontypridd, the Child Looked After 
Celebration Event and the 20th Celebration of the Taith Partnership hosted by Mark 
Drakeford.  During the six week school holiday period Glam Choir provided an 
excellent opportunity for 11 young carers to attend a two week summer camp.  

 
5.5   Children’s Services have worked alongside Barnardos to secure funding for music 

activities for young carers and young mothers. The new Alaw project has been 
attended by 12 female young carers aged between 14 and 18 years old. Sessions to 
date have offered opportunities for participants to song write and learning have to 
play musical instruments. 

 
5.6 Young carers are represented at the Merthyr Borough Youth Forum. One young 

carer is now a cabinet member. Young carers also attended the Youth Parliament 
Event at the Liberty Stadium in Swansea where they were involved in a focus group 
looking at developing life skills in the curriculum. Seven young carers are part of the 
community ambassador programme and attended a visit to the Children’s 
Commissioners’ Office in Swansea. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 In November 2019 Caring for our future: An inquiry into the impact of the Social 

Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 in relation to carers was released. Young 
carers shared that, in their opinion, there are four clear things that most young carers 
think need to improve:  

Page 15



 Awareness of young carers at school;  

 Opportunities to socialise with other young carers both at school and outside of 
school;  

 Chances to be active and to go on holiday with and without the people they care 
for 

 Guaranteed funding for young carers services so that they don’t have to worry 
about losing the support they rely on. 

 
Children’s Services objective is to meet the four clear things that young carers tell us 
they need most. 

 
6.2 The Early Help Hub went live on 2nd September 2019 our vision was for young 

carers to have a presence within the Early help Hub. This has commenced, however 
given the pervious years reduction in funding the capacity of the Young Carers 
provision has been impacted. Children’s Services have worked closely with 
Barnardos who secured an £49,975 ICF bid for there is be a worker based within the 
Early help Hub on a full time basis for young carers for a twelve month period. This 
will allow us opportunity to consider how we can financially support new ways of 
working that are more effective for our young carers. The funding will support us in 
achieving the following outcomes:  

 Early identification of young people who are young carers and proactively 
signpost them to the service. 

 Ensure that assessments consider the wider preventative support needs of the 
young carers’ family unit. 

 Utilise wider third sector services to support the young carer and their family. 

 Develop strong working links with education to identify young carers and support 
planning for their educational attainment. 

 
6.3 We continue to work closely with Education staff to support the recommendations of 

the published Estyn thematic report are implemented locally. 
   
6.4 Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers’ Service want to ensure that young carers’ are provide 

with the right support at the right time to maximise the likelihood of young carers 
meeting their potential. 

   

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Relevant Council Officers and Barnardos staff will continue to work closely to    

maximise the opportunities for our young carers and support them to access wider 
services. 

 
7.2  We will continue to advocate for our young carers to retain visibility of their needs 

and access to any additional resources as part of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers 
Strategy. 

 
7.3 We will continue to work alongside education to support the awareness of young 

cares within education settings. 
 
 

Page 16



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1  This area of business and the Council’s offer under Children’s Services Strategy 

Early Intervention and Prevention – Children and their families received the right help 
at the right time to prevent escalation of need. In line with our overall vision: 

 
Children and young people are safe and healthy; have the right help at the right time; 
are supported to live with their family or close to home; and, have stable and 
successful lives. 
  

 

 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
                      CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Barnardo’s Cymru – 
Merthyr Young Carers 

March 2018 – April 2019 
 

  

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?   

No 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached work programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 29th November 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 17th December 2019 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 20



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 21



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 22



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

17th April 2019 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 17th April 2019  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s44203/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


  

APPENDIX I 

Page 24



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Date / Timing 
PROPOSED 

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

11th June 2019 

Annual Forward Work 
Programme (2019/20) 

Cllr. Bill Smith and 
Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for Social 
Services (2019/2020). 

Young Carers Annual 
Report (2018/19) 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on the 
performance within 2018/19, along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development 
and improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report and 
Plan (2018/19) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 

9th July 2019 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) Annual Report  
(2018/19) 

Annabel Lloyd / 
Lyndon Lewis  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a multi-agency team which is 
made up of members of the Police, Probation, Health, Education, Substance Misuse and 
Social Services; as well as other specific to the team.  The YOS deals with young people 
between the ages of 10 and 18 who are involved in the criminal justice system and those 
who are just on the periphery of becoming involved in the system. The Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service (YOS) last presented a progress update report to scrutiny on 24th July 
2018 based on the Post Inspection Action Plan.   
 
The committee requires a position statement on the performance within the Cwm Taf 
region (2018/19), along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 
have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Reconfiguration of 
Homes 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / 
Chris Davies/ Lowri 
Morgan / Angela 
Edevane  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to include an update and feedback from the recent 
consultation and a detailed plan prior to its submission to Full Council.   
 

ACRF - Annual Report 
on Social Services 
(2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davis / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 
/ Lorna Townsend  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Draft ACRF was brought to Scrutiny on 7th May 2019 to provide 
comment and challenge as a part of the Consultation process. This report should contain 
all further updates from any additional consultation and previous comments made by 
Scrutiny, before submitting to Full Council.  
 

P
age 25



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Mental Health 
Inspection (2019/20?) 
Feedback Report 

Angela Edevane / 
Alyson Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The report should consider the strengths and development areas 
highlighted within the recent Mental Health Inspection feedback report, and also to 
consider key areas for improvement within Merthyr Tydfil for 2019/20. 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

17th September 2019 

Mid-year update on 
Social Services 
Complaints, 
Representations and 
Compliments Report.  
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
The annual report (2018/19) was presented to Scrutiny on 12th March 2019. The 
committee has requested a mid-year (2019/20) report be brought back for consideration 
and challenge. The committee expects further information on complaints within the 
report (e.g. the areas the complaints were made, what processes etc. has been 
changed/introduced in order to reduce the number of complaints etc.).  
 

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 

Angela Edevane/Lowri 
Morgan 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

A mid-year update on 
Cwm Taf Integrated 
Family Support Team 
(IFST) (2019/20) 
This report is no longer 
required as MTCBC has 
withdrawn from this 
collaboration (agreed 
by Chair on 5th Aug 
2019).   

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a regional mid-year position statement on the Cwm Taf 
IFST services, and also provide an update on the Edge of Care Service (EOC) within MTCBC. 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 1: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 

P
age 26



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

8th October 2019 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1 and Quarter 2, areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.    

A mid-year update on 
the Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 
and Plan (2019/20) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

10th December 2019 
17th December 2019 

Vale, Valleys And 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 
2019/20 Merthyr 
Tydfil update  
This has been deferred 
to 10th March 2020. 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

SS&WB Regional Plan 
– progress update 
(2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

P
age 27



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

A mid-year update on 
Young Carers 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny with a mid-year update on 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Young Carers.  Details should also be 
provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome or how 
you plan to overcome them.  

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 2: 
Outcomes 
This has been deferred 
to 21st January 2020 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

21st January 2020 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 2: 
Outcomes 
This has been deferred 
from 17th December 
2019 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3 update 

Angela Edevane Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
Update 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  To provide data and performance in relation to Corporate 
Parenting 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1, 2 and 3, and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.  This report should also give any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 28



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

10th March 2020 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3/end of year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a Quarter 3/end of year 
update on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 3: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Vale, Valleys And 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 
2019/20 Merthyr 
Tydfil update  
This has been deferred 
from 17th December 
2019. 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

5th May 2020 

Annual Complaints 
Report (2019/20) 
End of year update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
A mid-year report (2019/20) was presented to Scrutiny in September 2019. The 
committee has requested an end of year report (2019/20) for consideration and 
challenge. The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

P
age 29



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

ACRF Report (2019/20) 
(consultation) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following a consultation workshop with Scrutiny Members; a 
report summarising key messages from the Annual Report on Social Services 2019/2020 
will be presented for information. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

LAC Work (Welsh 
Government visit)  

This would be better delivered in the form of a presentation when the information is available. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Fostering Inspection 
Report  and Fostering 
Framework Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Advocacy Annual 
Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Self Evaluation Reports  Early indication would suggest there are three reports throughout the scrutiny cycle (1 report per SER question). 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Possibility of a Joint 
Scrutiny with Learning 
and LGES  

Possible topics to consider:  

 Educational Achievements of Children Looked After (CLA) and Care Leavers; 

 Tackling Poverty; 

 Community Zones; and 

 Early Years Learning. 

 Violence against 
Women Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (Annual 
report 2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  
/ Annabel Lloyd / 
Cllr Chris Davies / 
Deborah Evans 
(SMT) / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is a member of the Cwm Taf 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Steering Group, 
which is the lead partnership taking forward the Cwm Taf regions implementation of the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

The Committee would like to receive a summary report providing a position statement on 
‘Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence’ within the Cwm Taf region 
(2018/19). The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 

P
age 30



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Regional Partnership Business
	4 Mid-Year Update on Young Carers
	5 Forward Work Programme 2019/20
	Appendix 1


